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az0s azoslawfirm.com

JAMES PAZOS, Esq (State Bar No. 163609)

AZOS LAW FIRM, A Prof. Law Corp.

1801 Century Park East, 24" Floor
Los Angeles, California 90067
Telephone: (310) 556-1010

CRAIG R. SMITH (State Bar No. 180338)

csmith@smithlf.com

SMITH LAW FIRM

A Professional Law Corporation
21550 Oxnard Street, Suite 760
Woodland Hills, California 91367
Telephone: (818) 703-6057

Attorneys of Plaintiff Syed Hussain on behalf of himself and all other similarly

situated

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

SYED HUSSAIN, an individual and on
behalf of all other similarly situated
individuals

Plaintiff,

VS.

CAMPBELL SOUP COMPANY,
Defendant.

CASE NO.:

PLAINTIFF’S CLASS ACTION
COMPLAINT FOR:

1) Unfair Competition Law, Business
and Professions Code § 17200;

2) False Advertising Law, Business
and Professions Code § 17500;

3) Consumers Legal Remedies Act -
al. Civ. Code §1750

COMES NOW Plaintiff, SYED HUSSAIN on behalf of himself and all other

persons similarly situated, hereby complains against Defendant, CAMPBELL

SOUP COMPANY, a New Jersey corporation and on information and belief allege

as follows:

Plaintiffs SYED HUSSAIN ("Plaintiff"), by his undersigned attorneys

alleges upon information and belief, except for allegations pertaining to Plaintiff,

which are based on personal knowledge:
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INTRODUCTION
1. Defendant, CAMPBELL SOUP COMPANY (“Defendant”)

manufactures, markets, distributes, and sells “potato chips” under the “Kettle
Brand” name. Amongst the different types of potato chips sold by Defendant,
Defendant manufactures, markets, distributes, and sells potato chips which
prominently state “Air Fried” in large type on the labels. (hereinafter referred to as
the “Product”)

2. The Product is sold to consumers in individual bags from
brick-and-mortar and online stores by third-parties. All such Products represent
that the Product is “Air Fried.”

3. Plaintiff, like many other consumers, interprets the “Air Fried”
representation to mean that the Product is cooked by means of an air fryer which
cooks food using a fan to rapidly circulate convection currents (i.e., air).

4. As such, consumers interpret “Air Fried” to mean that the potato chips
are not fried in a vat of oil.

5. The phrase “Air Fried” is false and misleading as the potato chips that
make up the Product are cooked by frying them in a vat of oil.

6. Plaintiff now brings this action to stop Defendant’s misrepresentation
and recover the monies they paid for the Products as a result of the
misrepresentation, as well as statutory damages and the other relief detailed below.

BACKGROUND ON KETTLE BRAND POTATO CHIPS

7. Dictionary.com defines “air frying” as “a method of food preparation
in which the ingredients are enclosed in a type of small convection oven and
cooked, with little or no oil, by the circulation of hot air, which for certain foods
results in a crispy surface, as if they had been deep-fried.” (Emphasis added).

8. Merriam-Webster defines “air fryer” as “an airtight, usually small
electrical appliance for quick cooking of foods by means of convection currents

circulated rapidly by a fan.”
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9. Medical studies have suggested that foods fried in oil may increase the
risk of some cancers. See https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/32745572/
DEFENDANT’S FALSE AND MISLEADING “AIR FRIED”
REPRESENTATIONS
10. Defendant prominently makes the claim “AIR FRIED” in a large font,

on the front label panel of the Products, in an effort to promote the sale of the
Product by suggesting that the Product is not fried in oil like traditional potato
chips and that it therefore avoids the unhealthy effects of using the oil frying

cooking method traditionally used to cook commercial potato chips.

11. Plaintiff is informed and believes that consumers interpret the “Air
Fried” representation to mean that the Product is cooked completely in an air fryer,
which uses circulating convection currents to cook the Product.

12.  The “Air Fried” representation on the Product label is false and
misleading in that the Product is cooked by means of an oil fryer, a method
typically used to cook traditional potato chips. As demonstrated by the photo
above, the false representation on the label has led retailers to repeat the false
representation on the “in-store” advertising.
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13.  Asaresult of the “Air Fried” representation, its predominant position
on the label and the size of the “Air Fried” font, consumers purchase the Product
believing that the Product is not oil fried in vats, but is completely cooked by
means of rapidly circulating convection currents in air.

14.  The phrase on the front label and on the back label, “Kettle Cooked
Air Finished” does not remedy the deceptive nature of the “Air Fried”
representation. First, the phrase “Kettle Cooked” is false. The Product is not
cooked in “kettles,” as admitted by at least one representative of Defendant.
Second, the phrase “Kettle Cooked” -- even if it had been true -- implies the use of
steam, rather than oil, since kettles are commonly associated with boiling water.
(See e.g. Cambridge Academic Content Dictionary). Third, the phrase is in orders
of magnitude smaller than the “Air Fried” representation. Finally, the phrase is, at
best, ambiguous since “Kettle” is the brand name, leaving reasonable consumers to
interpret the phrase is as a marketing jingle.

CONSUMERS HAVE BEEN INJURED

15. As aresult of the Products false and misleading label, consumers are
injured by purchasing a product that the consumer would not have otherwise
purchased and/or by paying more to purchase the Kettle Brand product as opposed
to other less expensive brands. Plaintiff believes and based thereon alleges that
some consumers are also injured by purchasing a product that they believe is not
oil fried, thereby eliminating the risk of cancer potentially associated with foods
deep fried in oil.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
16.  Jurisdiction is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2).

17.  Upon information and belief, the aggregate amount in controversy is

more than $5,000,000.00, exclusive of interests and costs.
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18.  This court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant because it
conducts and transacts business within California and contracts to supply goods
within California.

19. Venue is proper because Plaintiff and many class members reside in
this District and Defendant does business in this District and in California.

20. A substantial part of events and omissions giving rise to the claims
occurred in this District.

PARTIES

21. Plaintiff SYED HUSSAIN is a resident of the City of Burlingame,
County of San Mateo, California. Plaintiff purchased Defendant’s Product from a
retailer in California in November 2023.

22.  On the date he first purchased the Product, Plaintiff was looking for a
healthy snack for his girlfriend, knowing that she was very health conscious. In
this process, Plaintiff saw the Product’s label, which stated “Air Fried” and
purchased the Product believing that the Product cooked by means of an air fryer;
that is, a potato chip cooked completely by convection currents in air and that it
was not fried in a vat of oil.

23. Plaintiff relied on the “Air Fried” label in purchasing the Product.
Had Plaintiff known the truth - that the “Air Fried” representation relied upon in
making the purchase was false, misleading, or deceptive and that the Product was
actually fried in a vat of oil, Plaintiff would not have purchased the Product. If the
Product were reformulated such that the potato chips were completely cooked in an
air fryer, Plaintiff would purchase the Product again in the future. Plaintiff brings
this claim seeking disgorgement of the purchase price or, alternatively,
disgorgement of profits, (actual and statutory), as well as injunctive relief.

24. Defendant CAMPBELL SOUP COMPANY is a New Jersey

corporation with a principal place of business in Camden, New Jersey.
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RULE 9(b) ALLEGATIONS
25. Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (“Rule”) 9(b) provides that “[i]n

alleging fraud or mistake, a party must state with particularity the circumstances
constituting fraud or mistake.” Rule 9(b). To the extent necessary, as detailed in
the paragraphs above and below, Plaintift has satisfied the requirements of Rule
9(b) by establishing the following elements with sufficient particularity:

26. Defendant made material misrepresentations and omissions of fact in
the labeling of the Product.

27. Defendant made material misrepresentations and omissions by affixing
the “Air Fried” representation on the Product labels in order to lead consumers to
believe that the Products were cooked by means of circulating convection currents
of air (i.e., air fried), and not fried in a vat of oil. This is false and misleading
because the Product is cooked exclusively by means of an oil fryer.

28. Defendant made the material misrepresentations and omissions
detailed herein continuously throughout the Class Period.

29. Defendant’s material misrepresentations and omissions were made,
inter alia, on the labeling and packaging of the Product.

30. Defendant made written misrepresentations on the labeling and
packaging of the Products.

31. Defendant also made false and misleading statements in media
advertising which exacerbates the false and misleading statements on the Product
labels. In one ad, Defendant depicts a giant air fryer and loudly proclaims “WE’VE
GOT AN AIR FRYER!” to mislead consumers into believing that large air fryers

are used to cook the product.
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!“ !5 Kettle Brand Kettle Cooked Air Fried Chips - Regi

32. Defendant engaged in the material misrepresentations detailed herein
for the express purpose of inducing Plaintiff and other reasonable consumers to
purchase and/or pay a premium for Defendant’s Product. Defendant profited by
selling the products to tens of thousands of unsuspecting California consumers and
secured the purchase price from such consumers which it otherwise would not
have secured but for the misrepresentations.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

33. Plaintiff brings this action individually and on behalf of the following
Class pursuant to Rule 23(a) and 23(b)(2) and (3) of the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure: All persons who purchased any of Defendant’s Products bearing from
on or about February 15, 2023, to the date of class certification (“the Class”).
Excluded from the Class are officers and directors of the Defendant, members of
the immediate families of the officers and Defendant’s directors, its legal
representatives, heirs, successors or assigns and any entity in which they have or
have had a controlling interest.

34. This action is brought and may properly be maintained as a class
action pursuant to Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 23. This action satisfies
the numerosity, typicality, adequacy, predominance, and superiority requirements

of those provisions. The Class is so numerous that the individual joinder of all of
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its members is impracticable. Due to the nature of the trade and commerce
involved, Plaintiff believes that the total number of Class members is in the tens of
thousands and that members of the Class are geographically dispersed across
California. While the exact number and identities of the Class members are
unknown at this time, such information can be ascertained through appropriate
investigation and discovery.

35.  Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the
Class, and these common questions predominate over any questions affecting only
individual members of the Class. These common legal and factual questions, which
do not vary from Class member to Class member, and which may be determined
without reference to the individual circumstances of any Class member include, but
are not limited to, the following:

(@)  Whether Defendant labeled, marketed, advertised and/or sold
the Products to Plaintiff and those similarly situated using false, misleading and/or
deceptive statements or representations;

(b)  Whether Defendant misrepresented material facts in connection
with the sales of its Products;

(c)  Whether Defendant participated in and pursued the common
course of conduct complained of herein; and

(d)  Whether Defendant’s labeling of its Products with the
representation “Air Fried” constitute an unfair or deceptive consumer sales
practice.

36. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of those of the Class because Plaintiff,
like all members of the Class, purchased a Product bearing the “Air Fried”
representation on the labels in a typical consumer setting and sustained damages

from Defendant’s wrongful conduct.
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37. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the Class
and has retained counsel who are experienced in litigating complex class actions.
Plaintiff has no interests that conflict with those of the Class.

38. A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and
efficient adjudication of this controversy. Individual joinder of all members of the
Class 1s impracticable. Even if individual members of the Class had the resources
to pursue individual litigation, it would be unduly burdensome to the courts in
which the individual litigation would proceed. Individual litigation magnifies the
delay and expense to all parties in the court system of resolving the controversies
engendered by Defendant’s common course of conduct. The class action device
allows a single court to provide the benefits of unitary adjudication, judicial
economy, and the fair and efficient handling of all Class members’ claims in a
single forum. The conduct of this action as a class action conserves the resources of
the parties and of the judicial system and protects the rights of the Class.
Furthermore, for many, if not most, a class action is the only feasible mechanism
that allows an opportunity for legal redress and justice.

39. This action is maintainable as a class action under Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure Rules Rule 23(b)(2) because Defendant has acted or refused to act
on grounds generally applicable to the Class, thereby making appropriate final
injunctive relief respecting the class as a whole.

40. This action 1s maintainable as a class action under Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure, Rule 23(b)(3) because the common questions of law and fact
identified above, without limitation, predominate over any questions affecting only
individual members, and a class action is superior to other available methods for

the fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy.
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CAUSES OF ACTION
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

(Unfair Competition Law, Business and Professions Code § 17200, et seq.)
On Behalf of Plaintiff and the Class

41. Plaintiff repeats each and every allegation contained in the paragraphs
above and incorporates such allegations by reference herein.

42.  As set forth above, the “Air Fried” labeling is false, deceptive and
misleading, causing consumers to believe that Defendant’s Product was cooked
exclusively by circulated convection currents in air (i.e., air fried), and therefore
not fried in a vat of oil, when, in fact, that was not true.

43. Defendant designed the false, misleading and deceptive “Air Fried”
label with the intent to sell, distribute and increase the consumption of its Product
and with the intend to mislead the consumer regarding the cooking method used
for the Product.

44. Defendant’s violation constitutes unlawful, unfair, and/or fraudulent
business acts and practices, which caused Plaintiff and Class members to suffer
pecuniary loss. Specifically, Defendant’s false, deceptive and misleading “Air
Frier” label caused consumers to purchase Defendant’s Products, believing that it
was cooked exclusively by means of circulating convection currents in air (and not
oil fried) when in fact it was cooked by the oil frying method.

45.  In this regard, Defendant’s manufacturing, marketing, advertising,
packaging, labeling, distributing and selling products bearing the “Air Fried” label
violates California’s Business and Professions Code.

46. The business acts and practices alleged above are unlawful under the
Consumers Legal Remedy Act, California Civil Code §1750, et seq. (“CLRA™),
which forbids deceptive advertising.

47. The business acts and practices alleged above are unlawful under

California Business and Professions Code §17200, et seq. by virtue of violating
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section 17500, et seq., which forbids untrue advertising and misleading
advertising.
48.  As aresult of the business acts practices described above, Plaintiff and

the Class, pursuant to California Business and Professions Code § 17203, are

entitled to an order enjoining such future conduct on the part of the Defendant and
such other orders and judgments which may be necessary to disgorge Defendant’s

profits and to restore to any person in interest any money paid for products bearing
the “Air Fried” label as a result of the wrongful conduct of the Defendant.

49.  The above-described unlawful business acts and practices of the
Defendant present a threat and reasonable likelihood of deception to Plaintiff and
members of the Class in that Defendant has systematically perpetrated and
continues to perpetrate such acts or practices upon members of the Class by means
of its misleading manufacturing, marketing, advertising, packaging, labeling,
distributing and selling of products bearing the “Air Fried” label.

50. Plaintiff and members of the Class also are entitled to recover
reasonable attorney’s fees in connection with their unfair competition claims
pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 1021.5, the substantial benefit
doctrine and/or the common fund doctrine.

51. THEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief as set forth below.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

(False Advertising Law, Business and Professions Code § 17500, et seq.)
On Behalf of Plaintiff and the Class
52. Plaintiff repeats each and every allegation contained in the paragraphs
above and incorporates such allegations by reference herein.
53. Plaintiff asserts this cause of action against Defendant for violations of

California Business and Professions Code §17500, et seq. for misleading,

deceptive and untrue advertising.
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54. At all material times, the Defendant engaged in a scheme of offering
its products bearing “Air Fried” label for sale to Plaintiff and other members of the
Class by way of, inter alia, commercial marketing and advertising, product
packaging and labeling and other promotional materials. These materials
misrepresented and/or omitted the true nature and quality of “Air Fried” Products.
Said advertisements and inducements were made within the State of California and

come within the definition of advertising as contained in California Business and

Professions Code §17500, et seq., in that such promotional materials were

intended as inducements to purchase products bearing the “Air Fried” labels and
are statements disseminated by the Defendant to Plaintiff and the Class and were
intended to reach members of the Class. Defendant knew, or in the exercise of
reasonable care should have known, that these statements were false, misleading
and deceptive.

55. In furtherance of said plan and scheme, Defendant has prepared and
distributed within the State of California via commercial marketing and
advertising, product packaging and labeling, and other promotional materials,
statements that misleadingly and deceptively represent that the Product was cooked
exclusively in an Air Fryer when, in fact, that was not true. Consumers, including
Plaintiff, necessarily and reasonably relied on these materials, believing the
Products bearing the “Air Fried” label had been cooked in an Air Fryer - which, is
untrue as the Products were cooked in oil fryers. Consumers, including Plaintiff
and the Class, were among the intended targets of such representations.

56. The above acts of the Defendant, in disseminating said misleading and
deceptive statements throughout the State of California to consumers, including
Plaintiff and members of the Class, were and are likely to deceive reasonable
consumers, including Plaintiff and other members of the Class, by obfuscating the
true nature and quality of the Products, all in violation of the “misleading prong”

and “untrue prong” of California Business and Professions Code §17500.
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57.. Asaresult of the above violations of the “misleading prong” and

“untrue prong” of California Business and Professions Code §17500, ef seq.,

Defendant has been unjustly enriched at the expense of Plaintiff and the other
members of the Class. Plaintift and the Class, pursuant to Business and Professions
Code § 17535, are entitled to an order of this Court enjoining such future conduct
on the part of the Defendant, and such other orders and judgments which may be
necessary to disgorge Defendant’s profits and restore to any person in interest any
money paid for products bearing the “Air Fried” label as a result of the wrongful
conduct of the Defendant.

58.  Plaintiff and members of the Class also are entitled to recover
reasonable attorney’s fees in connection with their unfair competition claims

pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure §1021.5, the substantial benefit

doctrine and/or the common fund doctrine.
59. THEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief as set forth below.
THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(Consumers Legal Remedies Act - Cal. Civ. Code §1750, et seq.)
On Behalf of Plaintiff and the Class

(Injunctive Relief Only)

60. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference the paragraphs stated
above in this Class Action Complaint as set forth herein.

61. This cause of action is brought pursuant to the CLRA, Cal. Civ. Code
§1750, et seq.

62. Defendant’s actions, representations and conduct have violated and
continue to violate the CLRA, as they extend to transactions that are intended to
result, or which have resulted, in the sale of lease of goods or services to
consumers.

63. Plaintiff and other Class Members are “consumers” as that term 1s

defined by the CLRA in Cal. Civ. Code §1761(d).
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64. The products bearing the “Air Fried” label that Plaintiff and other
members of the Class purchased from Defendant were “goods” within the meaning
of Cal. Civ. Code §1761(a).

65. By engaging in the actions, misrepresentations and misconduct set
forth in this Class Action Complaint, Defendant has violated, and continues to
violate Section 1770(a)(2), which prohibits representing that goods have a
particular composition or contents that they do not have;

66. By engaging in the actions, misrepresentations and misconduct set
forth in this Class Action Complaint, Defendant has violated, and continues to
violate Section 1770(a)(5), which prohibits representing that goods have
characteristics, uses, benefits or ingredients that they do not have;

67. By engaging in the actions, misrepresentations and misconduct set
forth in this Class Action Complaint, Defendant has violated, and continues to
violate, §1770(a)(7) of the CLRA. Specifically, in violation of Cal. Civ. Code §
1770(a)(7), Defendant’s acts and practices constitute unfair methods of
competition and unfair or fraudulent acts or practices in that they misrepresent the
particular standard, quality or grade of the goods.

68. By engaging in the actions, misrepresentations and misconduct set
forth in this Class Action Complaint, Defendant has violated, and continues to
violate, §1770(a)(16) of the CLRA. Specifically, in violation of Cal. Civ. Code
§1770(a)(16), Defendant’s acts and practices constitute unfair methods of
competition and unfair or fraudulent acts or practices in that they represent that a
subject of a transaction has been supplied in accordance with a previous
representation when they have not.

69. Plaintiff requests that this Court enjoin the Defendant from continuing
to employ the unlawful methods, acts and practices alleged herein pursuant to Cal.

Civ. Code §1780. If Defendant is not restrained from engaging in these types of
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practices in the future, Plaintiff and other members of the Class will continue to
suffer harm.

70.  Plaintiff only seeks injunctive relief at this point for violation of the
CLRA. Plaintiff will provide Defendant with preliminary notice of this lawsuit and
provided Defendant with an opportunity to cure the conduct alleged herein at least
thirty days prior to filing this lawsuit in accordance with Cal. Civ. Code § 1782. If
Defendant refuses to correct or remedy the unlawful conduct and continue to
engage therein after receiving such notice, Plaintiff will amend to also seeks
damages pursuant Cal. Civ. Code § 1780(a)(1).

71.  Plaintiff and members of the Class also are entitled to recover
reasonable attorney’s fees in connection with their unfair competition claims
pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 1021.5, the substantial benefit
doctrine and/or the common fund doctrine.

72. THEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief as set forth below.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

THEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment as follows:

1. Certification of the Class, certifying Plaintiff as representative of the
Class, and designating Plaintiff’s counsel as counsel for the Class;

2. A declaration that Defendant has committed the violations alleged
herein;

3. For restitution and disgorgement pursuant to, without limitation, the
California Business & Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq. and 17500, et seq;

4. For declaratory and injunctive relief pursuant to, without limitation,

the California Business & Professions Code §§ 17200, ef seq. and 17500, et seq.;

5. For only declaratory and injunctive relief pursuant to California Civil
Code § 1780 (though Plaintiff will amend to seek damages if Defendant does not
comply with the CLRA notice to be provided pursuant to California Civil Code §
1782);
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6. An award of compensatory damages, the amount of which is to be

determined at trial;

7. For punitive damages;
8. For interest at the legal rate on the foregoing sums;
0. For attorneys’ fees pursuant to California Code Civil Procedure

§1021.5 and the Common Fund doctrine.
10. For costs of suit incurred; and

11.  For such further relief as this Court may deem just and proper.

Dated: March 21, 2024 PAZOS LAW FIRM
A Professional Law Corporation

ﬁ?fﬁﬂﬂ (/;m
By

James Pazos
Attorneys for Plaintiff
Syed HUSSAIN

Dated: March 21, 2024 SMITH LAW FIRM
A Professional Law Corporation

K ///

By
(,ralg R. Smith
Attorneys for Plaintiff
Syed SSAIN
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JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
Pursuant to Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 38(a), Plaintiff hereby

demands a trial by jury of all claims and causes of action in this lawsuit to the
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extent permitted by law.

Dated: March 21, 2024

Dated: March 21, 2024

PAZOS LAW FIRM
A Professional Law Corporation

/ ////7/;} . ;//ﬂ
By
James Pazos
Attorneys for Plaintiff
Syed HUSSAIN
SMITH LAW FIRM _
A Professional Law Corporatlon
= :
////y . 2227 /
By
Craig R. Smith
Attorneys for Plaintiff
Syed HUSSAIN
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Northern District of California

SYED HUSSAIN, an individual and on behalf of all
other similarly situated individuals

Plaintiff(s)

V. Civil Action No.

CAMPBELL SOUP COMPANY

Defendant(s)

e N e N  a

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address) CAMPBELL SOUP COMPANY, ONE CAMPBELL PLACE, CAMDEN, NJ 08103

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,

whose name and address are:  JAMES PAZOS, Esq CRAIG R. SMITH
jpazos@pazoslawfirm.com csmith@smithlf.com
PAZOS LAW FIRM, A Prof. Law Corp. SMITH LAW FIRM, APLC
1801 Century Park East, 24th Floor 21550 Oxnard Street, Suite 760
Los Angeles, California 90067 Woodland Hills, California 91367
Telephone: (310) 556-1010 Telephone: (818) 703-6057

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:

Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (1))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date)

O I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

[ 1 left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

O I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or
O I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or
O Other (specify):
My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ 0.00

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:

Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:
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The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as
provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the
purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS

SYED HUSAIN an individual and on behalf of all other similarly situated

individuals
(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff ~San Mateo, CA

DEFENDANT

(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

(C) Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number)
See’attachment

NOTE:

S

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant

Attorneys (If Known)

CAMPBELL SOUP COMPANY

Camden County, NJ

(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.

II. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an “X” in One Box Only)

(For Diversity Cases Only)

and One Box for Defendant)

III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an “X” in One Box for Plaintiff

O 1 U.S. Government 0 3 Federal Question PTF DEF PTF DEF
Plaintiff (U.S. Government Not a Party) Citizen of This State X1 O 1 Incorporated or Principal Place O4 04
of Business In This State
3 2 U.S. Government %4 Diversity Citizen of Another State O 2 O 2 Incorporated and Principal Place as s
Defendant (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III) of Business In Another State
Citizen or Subject of a as3 O 3 Foreign Nation 6 06
Foreign Country
IV. NATURE OF SUIT (Piace an “X” in One Box Only) Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.
| CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES |
O 110 Insurance PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY |3 625 Drug Related Seizure 0 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 O 375 False Claims Act
3 120 Marine 3 310 Airplane O 365 Personal Injury - of Property 21 USC 881 |3 423 Withdrawal 3 376 Qui Tam (31 USC
3 130 Miller Act 3 315 Airplane Product Product Liability 3 690 Other 28 USC 157 3729(a))
3 140 Negotiable Instrument Liability O 367 Health Care/ 3 400 State Reapportionment
3 150 Recovery of Overpayment | O3 320 Assault, Libel & Pharmaceutical PROPERTY RIGHTS O 410 Antitrust
& Enforcement of Judgment Slander Personal Injury 3 820 Copyrights O 430 Banks and Banking
3 151 Medicare Act 3 330 Federal Employers’ Product Liability 3 830 Patent O 450 Commerce
3 152 Recovery of Defaulted Liability O 368 Asbestos Personal 3 835 Patent - Abbreviated O 460 Deportation
Student Loans O 340 Marine Injury Product New Drug Application O 470 Racketeer Influenced and
(Excludes Veterans) O 345 Marine Product Liability 3 840 Trademark Corrupt Organizations
O 153 Recovery of Overpayment Liability PERSONAL PROPERTY LABOR SOCIAL SECURITY O 480 Consumer Credit
of Veteran’s Benefits 3 350 Motor Vehicle 3 370 Other Fraud 3 710 Fair Labor Standards 3 861 HIA (1395ff) O 485 Telephone Consumer
3 160 Stockholders’ Suits 3 355 Motor Vehicle 3 371 Truth in Lending Act 3 862 Black Lung (923) Protection Act
3 190 Other Contract Product Liability 3 380 Other Personal O 720 Labor/Management 3 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) | 490 Cable/Sat TV
3 195 Contract Product Liability |3 360 Other Personal Property Damage Relations 3 864 SSID Title XVI O 850 Securities/Commodities/
3 196 Franchise Injury O 385 Property Damage O 740 Railway Labor Act 3 865 RSI (405(g)) Exchange
O 362 Personal Injury - Product Liability 3 751 Family and Medical X 890 Other Statutory Actions
Medical Malpractice Leave Act 0 891 Agricultural Acts
| REAL PROPERTY CIVIL RIGHTS PRISONER PETITIONS |3 790 Other Labor Litigation FEDERAL TAX SUITS 3 893 Environmental Matters
3 210 Land Condemnation 3 440 Other Civil Rights Habeas Corpus: O 791 Employee Retirement 3 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff O 895 Freedom of Information
3 220 Foreclosure 3 441 Voting O 463 Alien Detainee Income Security Act or Defendant) Act
3 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment O 442 Employment O 510 Motions to Vacate 3 871 IRS—Third Party O 896 Arbitration
3 240 Torts to Land O 443 Housing/ Sentence 26 USC 7609 O 899 Administrative Procedure
3 245 Tort Product Liability Accommodations O 530 General Act/Review or Appeal of
3 290 All Other Real Property O 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - | O 535 Death Penalty IMMIGRATION Agency Decision
Employment Other: O 462 Naturalization Application O 950 Constitutionality of
O 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - | 0 540 Mandamus & Other | 465 Other Immigration State Statutes
Other O 550 Civil Rights Actions
O 448 Education O 555 Prison Condition
3 560 Civil Detainee -
Conditions of
Confinement

V. ORIGIN (Place an “X” in One Box Only)

X1 [ 2 Removed from
State Court

O 3 Remanded from
Appellate Court

Original
Proceeding

O 4 Reinstated or

Reopened

O 5 Transferred from
Another District
(specify)

O 6 Multidistrict
Litigation -
Transfer

O 8 Multidistrict
Litigation -
Direct File

28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2)

Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION

Brief description of cause:

California State Law Unfair Competition

VII. REQUESTED IN A CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION DEMAND $ CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:
COMPLAINT: UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P. 5,000,000.00 JURY DEMAND: X Yes [No

VIII. RELATED CASE(S) ' ‘
IF ANY (See instructions): JUDGE DOCKET NUMBER

DATE SI q TTQRNEY OF RECORD

03/21/2024

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY T IRON

RECEIPT # AMOUNT APPLYING IFP JUDGE MAG. JUDGE
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44
Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as
required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is
required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of
Court for each civil complaint filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

I.(a) Plaintiffs-Defendants. Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use
only the full name or standard abbreviations. If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and
then the official, giving both name and title.

(b) County of Residence. For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the
time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land
condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant" is the location of the tract of land involved.)

(c) Attorneys. Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section "(see attachment)".

II. Jurisdiction. The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.Cv.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an "X"
in one of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.
United States plaintiff. (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant. (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box.
Federal question. (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment
to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes
precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.
Diversity of citizenship. (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the
citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity
cases.)

III.  Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties. This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above. Mark this
section for each principal party.

IV.  Nature of Suit. Place an "X" in the appropriate box. If there are multiple nature of suit codes associated with the case, pick the nature of suit code
that is most applicable. Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.

V. Origin. Place an "X" in one of the seven boxes.
Original Proceedings. (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.
Removed from State Court. (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.
When the petition for removal is granted, check this box.
Remanded from Appellate Court. (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing
date.
Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.
Transferred from Another District. (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or
multidistrict litigation transfers.
Multidistrict Litigation — Transfer. (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C.
Section 1407.
Multidistrict Litigation — Direct File. (8) Check this box when a multidistrict case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket.
PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS NOT AN ORIGIN CODE 7. Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to
changes in statue.

VL Cause of Action. Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional
statutes unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

VII. Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand. In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.

Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

VIII. Related Cases. This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket
numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.

Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.
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ATTACHMENT TO CIVIL CASE COVERSHEET

SECTION I(c)
Attorneys

JAMES PAZOS, Esq (State Bar No. 163609)
Jpazos@pazoslawfirm.com

PAZOS LAW FIRM, A Prof. Law Corp.
1801 Century Park East, 24th Floor

Los Angeles, California 90067

Telephone:  (310) 556-1010

CRAIG R. SMITH (State Bar No. 180338)
csmith@smithlf.com

SMITH LAW FIRM

A Professional Law Corporation

21550 Oxnard Street, Suite 760

Woodland Hills, California 91367
Telephone:  (818) 703-6057



